CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING MINUTES ***APPROVED***
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS MI 48864-1198

517.853.4000

WEDNESDAY, February 8, 2017

PRESENT: Members Jackson, Ohlrogge, Lane, Stivers, Chair Beauchine

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development,
Keith Chapman, Assistant Planner

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Chair Beauchine called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MEMBER STIVERS MOVED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS AMENDED MOVING “ITEM I
COMMUNICATIONS” BEFORE “ITEM D UNFINSHED BUSINESS.”

SECONDED BY MEMBER JACKSON.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

C. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL & RATIFICATION OF MINUTES
Wednesday, December 14, 2016

MEMBER LANE MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF WEDNESDAY DECEMBER 14, 2016 AS
WRITTEN.

SECONDED BY MEMBER OHLROGGE.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

D. COMMUNICATIONS
Director Kieselbach introduced the new Assistant Planner, Keith Chapman for Community
Planning and Development.

Chair Beauchine introduced the new Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) Member Emily Stivers, and
welcomed back Pat Jackson as Township Board Trustee and Planning Commissioner Ken Lane
in their new roles to the ZBA.

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

F. NEW BUSINESS
1. ZBA CASE NO0.17-02-08-1(Piotr Lupa),3575 KANSAS STREET, OKEMOS MI, 48840
DESCRIPTION: 3575 Kansas Street

TAX PARCEL: 33-352-001
ZONING DISTRICT: RA (Single Family Medium Density)



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, February 8, 2017 #**APPROVED*** PAGE 2

The applicant is requesting to amend a previously granted variance in accordance with the following
section of the Code of Ordinances:

e Section 86-224, A variance may be amended, modified, or extended only in accordance with the
procedures and criteria set forth for an original application in this division.

The applicant is requesting a variance to increase the height of an accessory building from the
following section of the Code of Ordinances:

e Section 86-373 (e)(7) Accessory buildings shall not exceed a height of 15 feet on any residential lot.

Director Kieselbach outlined the case for discussion. He explained the request is twofold. The
first part of the request is an amendment to a variance (ZBA Case No. 16-05-11-1) granted in
May 2016 and the second request is a variance to increase the height of an accessory structure.

Mr. Piotr, 3575 Kansas Street, Okemos, the owner and applicant, stated due to the low ceilings
in the current structure the plan was to add a second floor to the proposed garage for a larger
space for recreational vehicles and an art studio for his daughters.

Malgorzata (Margaret) Lupa, and her daughters Aota and Alla Lupa, 3575 Kansas Street,
Okemos, expressed their desire for an art studio. They added fumes from paint and cleaning
solvents increase a health hazard when used in a primary structure. The second floor of the
garage would create a safer location.

Chair Beauchine opened public remarks.

Steve Freemier, 3622 Kansas Street, Okemos, stated he was in favor of the variance request. He
added the rural setting in the neighborhood is conducive for the proposed second story on the
garage and would add value to the property.

Chair Beauchine closed public remarks.

Chair Beauchine asked Director Kieselbach how the height of an accessory structure is
measured.

Director Kieselbach indicted it was from the grade to the highest point of the roof. For this case
on the west elevation the height is 21 feet and on the east elevation the height is 19 feet.

Chair Beauchine asked Director Kieselbach what the maximum height was in the RA zoning
district.

Director Kieselbach replied 15 feet is the maximum height for an accessory structure.

Member Stivers asked if the art studio could be adjoined to the garage as opposed to being
located above the garage.

Director Kieselbach stated the applicant would still need the ZBA to approve the amended
variance request, and would need plans showing the structure met the height and setback
requirements.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, February 8, 2017 #**APPROVED*** PAGE 3

Member Lane asked if the applicant added the second story without exceeding the 15 feet
height maximum would the ZBA need to amend the first variance request, and would the
second variance request be needed.

Director Kieselbach answered yes; the ZBA would need to approve the amendment for the
second story even if the structure met the height requirement.

Member Lane questioned if it would be considered a hardship to have a functioning garage
using the maximum height of 15 feet.

Member Stivers questioned whether the roof line could meet the 15 feet maximum height and
still allow the studio.

Member Ohlrogge questioned whether Mr. Lupa understood the review criteria (Section 86-
221) used by the ZBA for determining a variance request.

Chair Beauchine recessed the meeting at 7:07 p.m. in order to allow Mr. Lupa to read the review
criteria.

Chair Beauchine reconvened the meeting at 7:13 p.m.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria one which states, unique circumstances exist that are
peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to other land or structures in the same
zoning district.

Mr. Lupa replied the proposed structure has a setback of approximately 45 feet from the road
and with the landscaping the structure would not be an obstruction to the neighborhood.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria two which states, these special circumstances are not
self-created.

Mr. Lupa stated two structures existed when he originally purchased the property. He added
one structure was converted to a house and the second structure is to be converted into a
garage.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria three which states, strict interpretation and enforcement
of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical difficulties. She
added Mr. Lupa has already answered part of this criterion.

Mr. Lupa replied the existing grade of the property creates a practical difficulty to expand the
footprint of the garage. He added the maximum height restriction for the garage also creates a
difficulty for using the structure.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria four which states that the alleged practical difficulties
which will result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent the owner
from using the property for a permitted purpose.

Mr. Lupa stated without the variance it would prevent them from using the proposed structure.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria five which states, granting the variance is the minimum
action that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner which is not contrary



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, February 8, 2017 #**APPROVED*** PAGE 4

to the public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure
public safety, and provide substantial justice.

Mr. Lupa answered without the space above the garage the art studio would have to be located
in the primary structure creating an unhealthy environment.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria six which states, granting the variance will not adversely
affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the property.

Mr. Lupa showed photos of a neighbor’s various structures. He stated his structures would be
visibly pleasing and not adversely affect adjacent land or change the essential character in the
vicinity of the property.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria seven which states, the conditions pertaining to the land
or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the formulation of a general
regulation for such conditions practicable.

Mr. Lupa stated it is not a non-recurrent situation. Due to the grade of the property it would
make it cost prohibitive to design any other layout for the accessory structures.

Member Ohlrogge read review criteria eight which states, granting the variance will be
generally consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this Chapter.

Mr. Lupa commented it would be in the public interest not to create a safety issue.

Member Stivers inquired of Mr. Lupa if there was a concern with soil erosion and being able to
build outward from the garage.

Mr. Lupa replied it was not an issue now as the erosion is under control.

Chair Beauchine read review criteria seven which states, the conditions pertaining to the land or
structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the formulation of a general
regulation for such conditions practicable. He stated the ZBA would be granting a variance from
an ordinance which the Township already has in place. He added the applicant has met this
review criteria.

Chair Beauchine stated the applicant had met review criteria two as the circumstance was not
self-created.

Member Stivers wonder what the special circumstances are in this case.

Member Jackson stated she liked the reuse of the existing building for a garage and could be
consider a unique circumstance.

Member Ohlrogge stated with the subject property being on a dirt road and setback 30 feet to 40
feet from Kansas Street creates a unique circumstance found in a rural area.

Member Lane stated approving the earlier variance request to convert the front structure to a
garage was an appropriate action. He added the structure in its current state with the low ceilings
will need some type of modification. He added these two issues create a unique circumstance.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, February 8, 2017 #**APPROVED*** PAGE 5

Member Lane commented the proposed design would not adversely affect adjacent land and
would not be out of place in the neighborhood. If the request is granted for the height of 21 feet
the design of the structure would not affect the essential character in the vicinity of the property.
He stated for those mentioned reasons review criteria six had been met.

Chair Beauchine stated the location of the subject property would not create a visual problem for
the public. He added the architecture of the home and the garage has a modern appearance and
would not affect the public interest.

Member Ohlrogge stated if the amendment was not grated the applicant would not be able to
build a safe garage, and allowing a garage is a permitted purpose.

Chair Beauchine asked with the different grades how the height of the structure was measured.

Director Kieselbach stated it was from the grade adjacent to the structure to the highest point of
the sloped roof.

Member Lane stated to use the structure for a garage the ceiling needs to be higher. He added the
second story could be an attic.

Member Stivers commented the roof needed to be raised to accommodate the garage but asked if
the extra 6 feet for the art studio was necessary. She added the ZBA could not change the
ordinance related to how the height is measured, but could take into account the unique
circumstances in this case.

MEMBER STIVERS MOVED TO MODIFY VARAINCE REQUEST ZBA CASE NO. 16-05-11-1 FROM
SEC 86-224, A VARIANCE MAY BE AMENDED, MODIFIED, OR EXTENDED ONLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES AND CRITERIA SET FORTH FOR AN ORIGINAL
APPLICATION IN THIS DIVISION.

SECONDED BY MEMBER JACKSON.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YES:Members Stivers Jackson, Lane, Ohlrogge and Chair Beauchine.
NO: None.
Motion carried unanimously.

Chair Beauchine moved to the variance request for the height of the structure to exceed 15 feet.

Member Ohlrogge agreed the garage was necessary, however using the review criteria it was
difficult to allow the height of the roof beyond the 15 foot maximum.

Member Lane stated the minimum action would be to follow the maximum height based on the
Township Ordinance.

Member Stivers asked whether increasing the grade adjacent to the structure should be
considered.

Chair Beauchine stated the dimensional variance was measured from the existing grade to the
highest point. Changing grade cannot be considered.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, February 8, 2017 #**APPROVED*** PAGE 6

K.

Member Lane commented the maximum 15 feet height is reasonable for a garage.

Member Stivers asked Mr. Lupa if there was any reason, outside of wanting the second floor, he
could give for the height to exceed the 15 feet.

Mr. Lupa responded the 15 feet would be sufficient for vehicles, but would consider a design
modification to meet the ZBA approval.

Member Ohlrogge commented if the variance is denied the applicant could modify the request
and re-apply or the ZBA could delay the request to give the applicant additional time.

MEMBER OHLROGGE MOVED TO DENY THE VARIANCE REQUEST FROM SECTION 86-373 (e)(7).
SECONDED BY MEMBER JACKSON.

Member Ohlrogge stated the desire for extra space is not a practical difficult and the minimum
action is for a garage with the maximum height of 15 feet.

ROLL CALL VOTE: YES: Members Ohlrogge, Jackson, Lane, Stivers and Chair Beauchine.
NO: None.
Motion carried unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

PUBLIC REMARKS
None.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Member Jackson reminded the ZBA and public about The Enactment Day event celebrating the
175th Anniversary of when Meridian Township and Delhi Township were established on
February 16, 1842. The Enactment Day event is on February 16, 2017 from 1:30 pm - 2:30 pm
at the Michigan State Capitol, Room 402/403.

ADJOURNMENT
Chair Beauchine adjourned the meeting at 8:45 pm.

POST SCRIPT - Brian Beauchine

Respectfully Submitted,

Rebekah Lemley
Recording Secretary



